
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 
 

Draft Minutes Page 1 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

  

December 10, 2020 
Minutes – Regular Meeting of the Board of Adjustment 

 CALL TO ORDER - 7:00 PM 

The Board of Adjustment met for their regular meeting at 7:00 PM in the Board Meeting 
Room of the Historic Courthouse, 153 Courthouse Road, Currituck, North Carolina. 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Troy Breathwaite Chairman Present  
Steven Craddock Vice Chairman Present  
Carol Bell Board Member Present  
Cathy Bontemps Board Member Absent  
Lynn L. Hicks Board Member Present  
Ike McRee County Attorney Present  
Lauren Arizaga-Womble Attorney Present  
Laurie LoCicero Planning Director Present  
Rachael Anderson Code Enforcement Officer Present  
Cheri Elliott Clerk to the Board Present  
Jerry D. Merritt Applicant Present  

 

Chairman Breathwaite called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM and asked the Clerk to the Board, 
Cheri Elliott, to call roll. 

 

A Announce Quorum Being Met 

Chairman Breathwaite announced a quorum with four board members present. 

B. Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any changes needed t o  t h e  
a g e n d a  f o r  t o n i g h t ' s  m e e t i n g . Vice Chairman Craddock motioned to 
approve as presented. Mr. Hicks seconded the motion and the motion carried 
unanimously. 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 2 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Carol Bell, Board 

Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member 

C Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any changes needed for the October 
15th, 2020 meeting minutes. Vice Chairman Craddock motioned to approve as 
presented. Mr. Hicks seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Carol Bell, 

Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member 

1. BOA Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2020  

D Ask for Disqualifications 

Chairman Breathwaite referenced the State Government Ethics Act and asked if there were 
any board members having a known conflict of interest with respect to the matter coming 
before the board tonight. There were no known conflicts noted. 

 OLD BUSINESS 

No old business was discussed. 

 NEW BUSINESS 

A. BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt - Appeal: Jerry D. Merritt is requesting an Appeal for 
Notice of Violation 20-1383 issued on September 10, 2020, for a concrete driveway 
constructed within the side setback of his property.  The subject property is 
located at 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, Tax Map 59C, Parcel 35, Crawford 
Township. 

Chairman Breathwaite reviewed the four Appeal Determination Standards for the board 
to base their decision. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite swore in the County witnesses Rachael Anderson, Code 
Enforcement Officer, and Laurie LoCicero, Planning Director. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite aked the County to present their case. 
 
Ike McRee, County Attorney, called Rachael Anderson to the stand.  She stated her 
name and her position with the County as Code Enforcement Officer.  She said she has 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 3 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

been employed in this position for 2 years and 1 month.  Mr. McRee asked how she 
became familiar with this property and Ms. Anderson said she had received a complaint 
concerning the concrete driveway and flower bed being in the setback, also stormwater 
issues.  Staff reached out to Dylan Lloyd with Currituck County Soil and Water 
Conservation Department.  Ms. Anderson said she went to the site to talk with the 
property owner, Mr. Merritt.  She explained the complaint received and the property 
owner said the concrete had been there a long time.  Ms. Anderson said she took 
pictures on location and researched the driveway online.  A PowerPoint presentation 
was presented showing the pictures of the driveway from the road view. 
 
Mr. McRee asked photos taken by Ms. Anderson be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 1 - Photos 
County Exhibit 2 - Photos 
 
Ms. Anderson presented GIS photos of the Applicant's property: Left photo dated 2010 
and right photo dated 2012.  Ms. Anderson said sometime between these two GIS 
photos is when concrete was added to the original driveway. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for the two GIS photos to be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 3 - GIS Photos (left dated 2010 and right dated 2012) 
 
Mr. McRee asked Ms. Anderson about the Unified Development Ordinance(UDO) that 
was in place during the time of the two GIS photos and whether it had the same setback 
of 10 feet.  Ms. Anderson said the  2007 UDO was in effect and the setback was the 
same, 10 feet. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for 2007 UDO Section 8.10 Driveways to be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 4 - 2007 UDO, Section 8.10 Driveways 
 
Ms. Anderson showed a Site Plan reviewed by Planning and Inspections in 2008 for the 
Applicant's property.  She referenced the Approved As Noted: "Driveway cannot 
encroach into 10' setback. No fill of any type within the 10' setback; As-built survey 
required prior to final inspection with a second note "Please indicate driveway location 
on as-built with distance from property line." 
 
Mr. McRee asked for the 2008 Site Plan to be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 5 - 2008 Site Plan reviewed by Planning and Inspections with added 
notes 
 
Ms. Anderson showed an As-built survey for the Applicant's property dated August 10, 
2009 and hand dated for acceptance on 8/11/09 with initials TBS.  Mr. McRee asked 
Ms. Anderson if the additional concrete driveway was included on this as-built and she 
said no.  Mr. McRee asked if the name on the as-built was consistent with the Applicant 
and Ms. Anderson said yes. 
 
Mr McRee asked for the As-built dated August 9, 2009 be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 6 - Jerry and Delores Merritt As-Built Survey dated August 9, 2009 
 
Ms. Anderson showed a Certificate of Compliance for 117 Nautical Lane with property 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 4 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

owner listed as Jerry D. Merritt, Trustee, dated August 14, 2009.  Mr. McRee asked Ms. 
Anderson if they would have had to be in compliance to receive this and Ms. Anderson 
said yes. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for the Certificate of Compliance be entered into the record: 
County Exhibit 7 - Certificate of Compliance for 117 Nautical Lane, dated August 14, 
2009 
 
Mr. McRee asked Ms. Anderson about the zoning of 117 Nautical Lane.  Ms. Anderson 
referenced the GIS zoning Map (attachment 9, Agenda Packet) showing the property 
zoned Single Family Residential Mainland (SFM). 
 
Ms. Anderson showed a page out of the current UDO for 3.4.2: Single Family 
Residential Mainland (SFM) Districts, F. Dimensional Standards.  Mr McRee asked if the 
Applicant's property is zoned SFM and Ms. Anderson said yes.  Mr. McRee asked what 
is shown as the side setback on this page and Ms. Anderson said 10 feet. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for this page of the current UDO 3.4.2 with dimensional standards 
showing a 10 feet side setback be entered into the record as: 
County Exhibit 8 - UDO 3.4.2: Single-Family Residential-Mainland (SFM) District 
(showing F. Dimensional Standards) 
 
Mr. McRee asked for Attachment 10 of the agenda packet to be entered as County 
Exhibit #9. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for the Notice of Violation letter dated October 2, 2020 with an 
attached corrective action plan to be submitted as County Exhibit #10. 
 
Mr. McRee asked Ms. Anderson if Mr. Merritt had indicated the time frame e added the 
driveway and Ms. Anderson said 2010 or sometime after the Certification of 
Compliance. 
 
Mr. McRee asked what is done to get a zoning permit and if Mr. Merritt had attempted to 
get one for the driveway.  Ms. Anderson said she did a search of the County's records 
and there was not a zoning permit on file. 
 
Ms. Anderson said Mr. Merritt filled out an extension since the contractor was back 
logged until April 2021 to be able to complete the Corrective Action Plan. 
 
Mr. McRee asked for the Corrective Action Plan to be entered into the record as County 
Exhibit #11 and for Ms. Anderson's consent to the plan to be County Exhibit #12. 
 
Mr. McRee asked if Ms. Anderson went back to the property and she said yes.  The 
neighbor had said the survey was complete and she went to view the markers.  She 
said Mr. Merritt agreed to the markers locations and she measured from the markers to 
the driveway with a tape. 
 
Mr. McRee asked Ms. Anderson if the driveway encroachment was apparent using the 
survey markers and she said yes.  Mr. McRee asked if there were no survey markers 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 5 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

would it be apparent and Ms. Anderson said no.  Mr. McRee had no further questions 
for the witness. 
 
The board had various questions for Ms. Anderson about the zoning, the additional size 
of the concrete Mr. Merritt added, and if the flowerbed was also encroaching into the 
setback.  Ms. Anderson said the flowerbed was actually on the neighbors property and 
Mr. Merritt agreed to move it.  Ms. Anderson said the only issue now is the concrete. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked Ms. Anderson the time frame for when concrete driveway 
was added.  Ms. Anderson said based on what the homeowner said, it was 2010.  
Based on GIS it was 2010 to 2012 and based on the picture it was spring time. 
 
Mr. McRee called the Planning Director, Laurie LoCicero, to the stand.  He asked her 
questions concerning the Unified Development Ordinance for 2005 and 2007.  Also 
questions concerning the setbacks.  Ms LoCicero said the setbacks were updated to 10 
ft setbacks in 2007.  Mr. McRee asked if the setbacks have changed since that date and 
Ms. LoCicero said no, they are the same. 
 
Mr. McRee asked to enter into record the staff report and remaining documents as 
County Exhibit #13. 
 
The applicant, Mr. Merritt, was sworn in and came before the board. 
 
Mr. Merritt said he had been a fighter pilot and a commercial pilot so he is used to 
following rules.  He said it took them 6 years to build their house.  He said this home 
was built as their second home and in May 2008 the Home Owner's Association (HOA) 
accepted their building plans.  He said their site plan was submitted on July 18, 2008 
and on July 19, 2008 it was initialed approved by the HOA. 
 
Mr Merritt said on July 30, 2009, the builder told him he could not build the driveway as 
in the plans.  On August 11, 2009 the driveway was completed and on August 14, 2009, 
the Certificate of Occupancy was issued. 
 
Mr. Merritt said the addition to the driveway was poured on June 23, 2010 and no one 
ever questioned it being in the setback.  He said he had a refinance and it was granted 
with the additional driveway portion.  He said they used the home for seven years as a 
second home.  Mr. Merritt said the HOA members knew about the driveway when they 
approved the plans.  He said he has lived there for eleven years and no one 
complained.  Mr. Merritt also stated the statute of limitations had ran out. 
 
Mr. Merritt asked how the County received the complaint concerning his driveway. 
 
Ms. Womble told Mr. Merritt the board will now ask you some questions. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked Mr. Merritt if it was the same contractor that did both parts 
of the driveway and he said yes. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite said you had discussions with the contractor to get the Certificate 
of Occupancy and then come back later to get the permits and Mr. Merritt said yes.  Mr. 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 6 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

Merritt stated the concrete was poured on June 23, 2010 when they were not living in 
the house. 
 
Ms. Bell said you stated the HOA had approved your plans and Mr. Merritt said yes.  Ms. 
Bell said the HOA does not enforce the County's rules; they have their own rules. 
 
Mr. Hicks said it still has to go through the County after the HOA. 
 
Ms. Bell said it seems Mr. Merritt thought all he needed to do was get the HOA to 
approve the plans.  Mr. Merritt said the contractor was supposed to get the permit. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite and Mr. Craddock both questioned Mr. Merritt on whether he had 
conversations with his contractor that he would do the driveway and then come back 
later to add the additional part.  Mr. Merritt said yes, he would come back and do the 
turnaround portion. 
 
There was no public comment and no person had signed up to speak. 
 
Mr. Merritt asked to make an additional statement.  He said because of Covid his 
neighbors could not be here to speak on his behalf so they sent a letter. 
 
Mr. McRee objected saying this was hearsay since the witness is not present. 
 
Ms. Womble explained to Mr. Merritt why the letter could not be submitted to the board.  
She said this is a quasi-judicial hearing and someone would have to be under oath in 
order to give their statement.  Mr. Craddock asked if a notarized statement could be 
permissible.  Ms. Womble said no, the County has to have the opportunity to cross 
examine the witness. 
 
There were no more questions for Mr. Merritt. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite closed the public hearing. 
 
The board had discussion.  Chairman Breathwaite reminded the board to read the 
review standards for an appeal. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite addressed the applicant.  He said he certainly understands the 
situation and believes Mr. Merritt does not believe it's his fault, but the fact is the 
additional concrete is in the setback.  The issue is the statute of limitation for seven 
years and if the violation 1383 is governed by this statute.  Ms. Womble said Mr. McRee 
needs to be able to make his closing statement and he may wants to address this within 
his statement.  Mr. McRee said there was a 2017 amendment concerning a statute of 
limitations for zoning, but the seven years starts after the following: 

• The violation of the ordinance is apparent from a public right of way. 
• The violation of the ordinance is in plain view from a place to which the public is 

invited. 
The time began when the violation became apparent to the County and Notice of 
Violation was issued. 
 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 7 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

If the violation is apparent or in plain view, enforcement must be taken and that does not 
preclude the administrative process.  The burden is on someone raising the issue.  It's 
still a violation and the County can still issue civil citations and withhold requested 
permits for this property.  It's precluded if the defendant is able to show that it is not 
applicable. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any statute of limitations listed within the 
UDO.  Mr. McRee there is not any within the current UDO. 
 
Mr. Merritt asked to make a closing statement.  He said he was not an attorney, but just 
reading the statute.  He said everyone knew where the property line was and could see 
the driveway.  He said he would apply for a Variance. 
 
Ms. Womble said an accurate reading of the law for the statute of limitations list a 
number of items and within it has this situation for referencing and enforcement.  This 
statute is not applicable to administrative and this is where you are right now.  If Mr. 
Merritt would like to file an appeal then it might be there. 
 
Mr. McRee said Mr. Merritt still has the ability to rectify through compliance.  Also, he 
would not be barred from bringing a variance at a later time. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite and Mr. Craddock asked questions concerning Mr. Merritt filing a 
Variance and not having to take out the concrete and then put the concrete back in.  Ms. 
Womble said the options are a Variance, Corrective Action Plan, or if the board says this 
appeal is granted. 
 
Discussion was held on where the complaint for Mr. Merritt's violation came from.  Ms. 
Womble said most violations are complaint driven.  Chairman Breathwaite said it does 
not matter where the complaint came from, the County had to investigate once the 
complaint was received. 
 
Mr. Craddock said the builder did know about the setback issue since he set the 
concrete back 10 ft which was different from the original building plans.  The builder was 
trying to skirt the rules.  The intent by the contractor was to wait until after the Certificate 
of Occupancy to put the additional concrete.  Chairman Breathwaite said he heard Mr. 
Merritt say he thought the builder had received the pemits.  Mr. Hicks agreed with 
Chairman Breathwaite. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite said there is no question the concrete is in the setback and there 
was a violation. 
 
Mr. Craddock said he did state he knew it was in the setback.  He said Mr. Merritt does 
have other options beyond this motion tonight. 
 
Mr. Craddock motioned to affirm the Notice of Violation for Mr. Merritt's case, BOA 20-
05, that the decision maker did not make an error and that they correctly applied the 
ordinance in making this decision. 
 
Mr. Hicks seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously 4-0. 



Currituck County Board of Adjustment December 10, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 8 Updated 1/6/2021 1:47 PM  

RESULT: AFFIRM STAFF'S DECISION [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Carol Bell, 

Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member 

 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

There were no announcements. 

 ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Craddock motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Hicks seconded the motion and the 
meeting adjourned at 8:28 PM. 



 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 

NORTH CAROLINA 
 

 
 

Draft Minutes Page 1 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

  

October 15, 2020 
Minutes – Special Meeting of the Board of Adjustment 

 CALL TO ORDER 

The Board of Adjustment met for a special meeting at 7:00 PM in the Board Meeting Room of 
the Historic Courthouse, 153 Courthouse Road, Currituck, North Carolina. 
 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Troy Breathwaite Chairman Present  
Steven Craddock Vice Chairman Present  
Carol Bell Board Member Absent  
Cathy Bontemps Board Member Present  
Lynn L. Hicks Board Member Present  
Ike McRee County Attorney Present  
Lauren Arizaga-Womble Board of Adjustment Attorney Present  
Laurie LoCicero Planning Director Present  
Rachael Anderson Code Enforcement Officer Present  
Jennie Turner Planner II - Acting Clerk to the Board Present  
Justin Old Applicant/Appellant Present  
Steven D. Weber Applicant's Attorney Present  
Ben Stikeleather County Manager Present  

 

Chairman Breathwaite called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and asked the acting Clerk to the 
Board, Jennie Turner, to call the roll. 
 

A Announce Quorum Being Met 

Chairman Breathwaite announced a quorum with four board members present. 

B. Approval of Agenda 

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Vice Chairman 
Craddock motioned to approve as presented.  Mr. Hicks seconded the motion and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 9

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 2 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Cathy Bontemps, 

Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Carol Bell, Board Member 

C Approval of Minutes for August 13, 2020 

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any changes needed for the August 13, 2020 
meeting minutes.  Vice Chairman Craddock motioned to approve as presented.  Ms. 
Bontemps seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Cathy 

Bontemps, Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Carol Bell, Board Member 

1. BOA Minutes - August 13, 2020  

D Ask for Disqualifications 

Chairman Breathwaite referenced the State Government Ethics Act and asked if there were 
any board members having a known conflict of interest with respect to the matter coming 
before the board tonight. There were no known conflicts noted. 

 OLD BUSINESS 

There was no old business discussed. 

 NEW BUSINESS 

A. PB 19-08 Justin Old - Glenmoor Ridge Dewatering Violations: Appeal of violation 
#1197 and violation #1198 for improperly pumping excess water not in accordance 
with the rules of the Unified Development Ordinance for property located on 
Campus Drive, Tax Map 22, Parcels 78A & 78B, Moyock Township. 

Ben Stikeleather, Mark Bissell, Clay Cartwright, Justin Old, Laurie LoCicero, Rachael 
Anderson, Mike Hall, Denise Hall, Jamie Coolman, and Karen Coolman were sworn in.  
 
The County Attorney, Ike McRee, gave his opening statement and began his direct 
examination of Ms. LoCicero.  It was noted that Attachment 2B was inadvertently left out 
of the agenda packet.  
 
Mr. McRee asked about the original complaint received concerning the flooding of the 
properties.  Ms. LoCicero gave the following account leading up to the violation:  
Commissioner Etheridge came to the Historic Courthouse with a map and discussion 
was held with the County Manager, Ben Stikeleather.  Mr. Stikeleather then directed Ms. 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 10

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 3 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

LoCicero to have her staff do an investigation.  Ms. LoCicero briefed the Code 
Enforcement Officer, Rachael Anderson, with the construction drawings and files 
concerning Glenmoor Ridge dewatering.  Ms. Anderson went to the location of the 
alleged violation to investigate and take pictures. 
 
Mr. McRee asked if there were any unusual weather events and Ms. LoCicero said there 
was significant rainfall the previous weekend from Hurricane Dorian. Ms. LoCicero said 
she directed Ms. Anderson to investigate on information received September 9, 2019.   
 
Steven Weber, attorney to Justin Old, began his cross examination of Ms. LoCicero. 
 
Mr. Weber asked if Ms. LoCicero had visited Glenmoor Ridge.  Ms. LoCicero said she 
visited the first Tuesday after the violation and then again the following week with the 
Code Enforcement Officer and the County Engineer. 
 
Mr. Weber asked Ms. LoCicero how often she visted the site and Ms. LoCicero said 
about a dozen times. 
 
Mr. McRee objected to Mr. Weber presenting a video of the Board of Commissioners 
speaking about the Glenmoor Ridge dewatering violations.  Ms. Womble, Board of 
Adjustment Attorney, assessed the objection before the video could be played. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked Mr. Weber to explain the clips. 
 
Ms. Womble said in terms of a County statement by a party opponent - it is not a formal 
action by the Board or the County itself.  County position is by action a cohesive board 
and we are here on staff's determination.  The Commissioner's statements are not 
relevant.  The Board of Adjustment is an independent body which is a sitting judicial 
board and the Board of Commissioners does not instruct the Board of Adjustment.  The 
violation was done on staff's determination and not on an individual Commissioner's 
statement.   
 
Chairman Breathwaite  said the statements of the Commissioner were not relevant and 
we need to stick with facts. 
 
Mr. Weber wanted to call Mr. Stikeleather to the stand in order to show the video.  Mr. 
Weber asked to enter the video clips into the hearing as an exhibit but not asking for 
them to be shown. 
 
The following exhibits were entered as evidence: 
 
County 1 - Agenda Packet 
Appellant 1 - Binder/Notebook 
Appellant 3 - Copy of Agenda 
Appellant 4 - Copy of Unified Development Ordinance 
Coolman 1 - Set of Photographs 
 
The following was entered as record, but not as evidence: 
 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 11

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 4 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

Appellant 2 - 4 Video Clips 
 
Mr. McRee clarified with Ms. Womble the videos are not being entered as evidence and 
she concurred. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if the board had any questions for staff. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock asked for a clarification concerning removing substantial 
damage part of the sentence. 
 
Ms. LoCicero stated it could be removed. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite said regulations can be tricky to make sure you have clear intent 
and it appears substantial damage portion is an integral part of it. Location could play a 
roll or volume could play a roll in causing substantial damage.  It is Hard to see how the 
substantial damage part of the sentence could be removed and maintain the same 
meaning. 
 
Ms. Bontempts agreed that it references the damages. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if the relationship between the approved site plan and the 
stormwater activities was reference in section 2.8 and Ms. LoCicero said it was a 
reference in that section. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if under SW regulations the activity of pumping the pond in 
and of itself with no flooding to an interior farm ditch is permitted and Ms. LoCicero said 
it is an allowable activity during construction.  She said, typically, it adheres to the 
approved construction plan. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if Ms. LoCicero found flooding in the adjacent corn field 
when she visited on September 9th.  Ms. LoCicero said she visited the back of the 
property and did not go to the cornfield; there was an elevation difference between the 
corn field and the pump locations. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite asked if the pump was directed to one of the ditches and Ms. 
LoCicero said no.  She said this would be answered better with Ms. Anderson's pictures 
and video on where it was pumping to. 
 
Chairman Breathwaitee said the LIDAR graphic prior to construction has a good chance 
for the corn field being lower. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock asked, in your opinion, do you believe that LIDAR is more 
accurate than on site measurements done by a surveyor. 
 
Ms. LoCicero said the LIDAR can give a general overview and a general lay of the land.  
A surveyor would be more accurate. 
 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 12

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 5 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

Mr. McRee called Rachael Anderson, Currituck County Code Enforcement Officer, to 
the stand.  She introduced herself and said she has been with the County for two years 
tomorrow. 
 
Ms. Anderson said Laurie LoCicero asked her to go to the property and Deputy Sheriff 
Corbell was there, as well. 
 
Mr. McRee asked what she was told to inspect.  Ms. Anderson said a pump pumping 
water.  She was given a general direction and given a hand drawn map.  She said she 
found the pump and walked to were the pump was located. 
 
Mr. McRee asked what time she left the Courthouse and Ms. Anderson said around 
11:00 AM.  She said her time is backed up by time stamped/dated pictures. 
 
Mr. McRee asked what Ms. Anderson did upon arriving at the site. 
 
Mr. Weber objected to the question - 8:57 PM. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite conferred with Ms. Womble.  Ms. Womble said it can be 
admissible for the purpose of why she was going back to the site. 
 
Ms. Anderson said she went to a meeting at Karen Coolman's house, a homeowner on 
Old Jury Road, with Justin Old, Kim Old, Mike Hall, Ron Schaecher, and Laurie 
LoCicero.  There were others present, but she did not know their names.   
 
Ms. Anderson said she was only briefly at the meeting.  She spoke to Mr. Old about the 
breach ditch and silt fence.  We did not speak about the pumping violation. 
 
Mr. McRee asked if at some point did you determine that the pumping had stopped and 
or had been removed from the SW pond. Ms. Anderson said yes, the pump was 
removed from pond 7 and relocated. 
 
Mr. McRee asked if she determined the Notice of Violation was complied with and Ms. 
Anderson said yes. 
 
Mr. McRee asked when compliant what did you do and Ms. Anderson said she went 
back to Glenmoor Ridge for the purpose to recheck the silt fence was fixed on 
September 17, 2019. 
 
Mr. Weber objected and moved to strike compliance with breach ditch. 
 
Ms. Womble concurred that the objection should be allowed for the silt fence. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite allowed the objection. 
 
Mr. McRee asked Ms. Anderson if she went back again and Ms. Anderson said yes, on 
September 18th, 2019. 
 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 6 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

Ms. Anderson said she was asked to go back; she took pictures and made notes 
concerning the farm field where the water was originally going. 
 
Mr. McRee asked if there were any further reports or complaints received or acted upon 
at the location contrary to construction plans and Ms. Anderson said no. 
 
Ms. Anderson said she deemed the matter compliant. 
 
Mr. Weber began his cross examination of Ms. Anderson at 9:06 PM. 
 
She said the pump operated a total of two hours. 
 
Mr. Weber asked if Ms. Anderson visited the property at any time earlier than 11 and 
she said no. 
 
Mr. Hicks asked what time the County Commissioner came to the office with the paper.  
 
Discussion was held on how long the pump was running.  The board asked Ms. 
Anderson various questions concerning the video, the pump, how long the pump was 
running and where the water was discharging to. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock asked if Ms. Anderson helped prepare the staff report packet 
and she said yes. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock asked about the exact amount of rainfall received from 
Hurricane Dorian.  Ms. Anderson said she received it from Steven Pyle and it was on 
Page 49 of the packet.. 
 
9:23 PM - Rachael Anderson's testimony completed. 
 
 
Mr. Weber gave his opening and started calling his witness's to the stand. 
 
Justin Old took the stand to give his testimony and provided information on three 
photos: 
1st photo - Sept. 10, 2019 
2nd photo - Sept 10, 2019 
3rd - Oct 13, 2020 
 
9:38 PM - Clay Cartwright took the stand to provide his testimony. 
 
9:56 - Mark Bissell took the stand to provide his testimony. 
 
Mr. McRee started his cross examination. 
10:10 PM - He asked Mr. Bissell when elevation points were measured and he said prior 
to September 9, 2019 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock asked questions concerning the ditch capacity. 
 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 14

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 7 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

Chairman Breathwaite called for a break. 
 
Mr. Weber confirmed his evidence into record for Appellate 1 - the notebook, A - Copy of 
Agenda Packet, and Appellant 4 - Copy of Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Weber rested his case, but reserved the right to call rebuttal witnesses. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite opened the Public Comment portion at 10:28 PM. 
 
Jamie Coolman and Karen Coolman of 172 Old Jury Road came before the board.  
They talked about the flooding that occurred on Sept. 6th through Sept. 7th of 2019.  
The Coolman's provided a set of photographs and the photographs were entered as 
evidence. 
 
Coolman 1 - Set of Photographs 
 
Mike Hall came before the board to make his public comments concerning the flooding. 
 
Mr. Weber asked Mr. Hall about his statements. 
 
Deborah Coble of 201 Green View Road, Eagle Creek Subdivision came before the 
board and asked the board to table this issue.   
 
Justin Old made additional comments. 
 
Clay Cartwright made additional comments. 
 
Chairman Breathwaite closed the pubic hearing 
 
The board had discussion. 
 
Mr. Weber made his closing argument. 
 
The board had additional discussion. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock made a motion to reverse the County's decision on the two 
Notice of Violations that were issued to the Appellant. He said the County made errors 
in determining whether a standard was met, also the County made an error in applying a 
measuring standard; The County has made errors in ways of notification to the 
Appellant on the fact that they did have Notice of Violations and the County did not 
provide enough evidence to support all of their Findings of Fact. 
 
Vice Chairman Craddock said he was referencing the original Notice of Violations and 
the Amendment to them. 
  
Ms. Bontemps seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously with a 4-0 
vote. 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 15

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



Currituck County Board of Adjustment October 15, 2020 

Draft Minutes Page 8 Updated 12/3/2020 10:40 AM  

RESULT: REVERSED STAFF'S DECISION [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman 

SECONDER: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member 
AYES: Troy Breathwaite, Chairman, Steven Craddock, Vice Chairman, Cathy 

Bontemps, Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member 
ABSENT: Carol Bell, Board Member 

 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

There were no announcement made. 

 ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Hicks motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Ms. Bontemps seconded the motion and the 
meeting adjourned at approximately 11:30 PM. 

1.C.1

Packet Pg. 16

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
B

O
A

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
O

ct
o

b
er

 1
5,

 2
02

0 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



 

Currituck County 

Agenda Item Summary Sheet 

 

 
Agenda ID Number – (ID # 2989) 

 

Agenda Item Title: BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt - Appeal: 
 

Submitted By: Cheri Elliott – Planning & Community Development 
 

Presenter of Item: Laurie LoCicero 
 

Board Action: Action 
 

 

 

Brief Description of Agenda Item: 

 
Jerry D. Merritt is requesting an Appeal for Notice of Violation 20-1383 issued on September 10, 
2020, for a concrete driveway constructed within the side setback of his property.  The subject 
property is located at 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, Tax Map 59C, Parcel 35, Crawford 
Township. 

 

Is this item regulated by plan, regulation or statute?  

 

Manager Recommendation:  

3.A

Packet Pg. 17



BOA 20-1383 Jerry Merritt/ Concrete Driveway in Setback 
Appeal 

Page 1 of 3 

 

         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: December 10, 2020 
 
Re:  BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt/ Concrete Driveway in Setback 
 
 
Jerry D Merritt and Delores J Merritt, Trustee, and owners, of 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC 
27929 have filed an appeal of notice of violation 20-1383 issued on September 10, 2020.  
 
The notice of violation was issued to the owners of 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC (PIN 
059C00000350000) because the concrete driveway was constructed within the 10’ side setback 
which is a violation of the county’s Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
The owners of the adjacent property at 115 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC 27929 obtained a 
survey of their lot in preparation for construction of a new house. After the survey was 
completed, the owners of 115 Nautical Lane and 117 Nautical Lane agreed the survey markers 
were correct.   With the property line remarked, staff received a complaint about the potential 
side setback violation.  After receipt of the complaint, staff investigated the property.  Staff 
determined that the driveway installed at 117 Nautical Lane is in violation of the Unified 
Development Ordinance Chapter 3, Subsection 3.4.2.F. Dimensional Standards. 
 
Unified Development Ordinance 
The following sections of the UDO are applicable to this case 

• Chapter 3, Subsection 3.4.2.F. Dimensional Standards 
o Min. Driveway/Parking Setback (ft) 10 

• Chapter 2, Subsection 2.4.9. Zoning Compliance Permit 
o A. Purpose 

The purpose of a zoning compliance permit is to ensure no development occurs 
until there is assurance the development complies with the requirements of this 
Ordinance 

o B. Applicability 
A zoning compliance permit is required before issuance of a building permit, any 
change in use, or commencement of activity that does not require issuance of a 
building permit. 

Background 
 

• July 14, 2008- The construction of the home on 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC 27929 
site plan was approved as noted 

 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

0 
- 

B
O

A
 2

0-
13

83
  S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



BOA 20-1383 Jerry Merritt/ Concrete Driveway in Setback 
Appeal 

Page 2 of 3 

o At the time the permit number 200800780 was submitted for 117 Nautical Lane, 
Curituck, NC 27929 the 2007 Unified Development Ordinance was in affect 

• August 11, 2009- As built approved for 117 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC 27929 
• August 14, 2009- Certificate of Compliance issued for 117 Nautical Lane 
• Between 2010 and 2012 the driveway appears on the Currituck County GIS Online 

Mapping Program 
• January 1, 2013  New Unified Development Ordinance in effect. 
 

 
Violation 

• On Wednesday August 26, 2020 staff received a complaint regarding a flowerbed, 
driveway in the side setback, and stormwater issue. It was told to staff at the time of the 
complaint that a recent survey had been conducted and the survey markers were still in 
place.  

• On August 28, 2020, the Code Enforcement Officer, Rachael Anderson and Stormwater 
Manager, Dylan Llyod coordinated to do an onsite inspection of 117 Nautical Lane, 
Currituck, NC 27929. Upon arrival staff was greeted by the property owner/trustee Jerry 
Merritt. Staff informed Mr. Merritt that a complaint was received on his property.  Staff 
inquired if Mr. Merritt agreed with the survey conducted on the adjacent lot 115 Nautical 
Lane, Currituck, NC 27929. Mr. Merritt had no objections to the survey that had been 
recently done on 115 Nautical Lane, Currituck, NC 27929. With the cooperation and 
permission of Mr. Merritt, staff was able to measure the concrete that was added to the 
driveway. Before departure, the owner expressed how long it had been on the site. Staff 
informed him that the concrete appears to be a violation, but that staff would look at 
several things before a final determination was made. 

• Staff reviewed the GIS online mapping determine the zoning of the property and to 
determine when the driveway extension was installed 

• Staff reviewed the Unified Development Ordinance in effect at the time the driveway 
extension was installed. The 2007 UDO as amended required a minimum side setback 
of 10’ for driveways. 

• Staff searched the county’s permitting software to determine if a permit was submitted 
for the driveway extension. 

• Staff determined that the driveway encroachment was an unpermitted violation of the 
Unified Development Ordinance. The current UDO as amended requires a minimum 
side setback of 10’ for driveways. 

• On September 10, 2020, the official Notice of Violation #1383 was issued and mailed by 
staff. 

• On September 16, 2020, staff received a Corrective Action Plan for an extension of the 
time limit for correction of the violation  

• Staff approved the Corrective Action Plan (extension of time request) on September 24, 
2020 

• On September 29, 2020 an appeal of Notice of Violation #1383 was received by staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

0 
- 

B
O

A
 2

0-
13

83
  S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



BOA 20-1383 Jerry Merritt/ Concrete Driveway in Setback 
Appeal 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Appeal Review Standards 
1. The standard of review to be applied by the Board of Adjustment is limited to the following 

determinations in considering the appeal, which shall be based on clear and substantial 
evidence in the record is whether:  
a. The decision-maker did not make an error or correctly applied the standards of the UDO 

in making the decision or interpretation;  
b. The decision-maker made an error in determining whether a standard was met. The 

record must indicate that an error in judgment occurred or facts, plans, or regulations 
were misread in determining whether the particular standard was or was not met;  

c. The decision-maker made the decision based on a standard not contained in this 
Ordinance or other appropriate county ordinances, regulations, or state law, or that a 
standard more strict or broad than the standard established in this Ordinance was 
applied; or  

d. The decision-maker made an error in applying a standard or measuring a standard.  
2. Where conflicting evidence exists, the appeal is limited to determining what evidence or 

testimony bears the greatest credibility in terms of documentation and qualifications of those 
making the determination.  

3. The Board of Adjustment shall not hear any evidence or make any decision based on 
hardships or special conditions. (Such matters may only be considered in the context of an 
application for a variance or use permit.) 

 
Attachments 
The county submits the following attachments for the Board’s consideration: 
 

o Attachment 1: Notice of violation #1383 dated September 10, 2020 
o Attachment 2: Picture 1 
 Attachment 3: Picture 2 
o Attachment 4:  2007 Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 8 , Section 8.10            

Driveways 
o Attachment 5: July 14, 2008 Site plan approved with conditions 
o Attachment 6: August 11, 2009 As-built survey approved  
o Attachment 7:  August 14, 2009- Certificate of Compliance 
o Attachment 8:  2010 Online GIS Aerial Photography Map showing no driveway 

expansion 
• 2012 Online GIS Aerial Photography Map showing driveway expansion 

o Attachment 9:   Map showing Zoning  
o Attachment 10: Chapter 3, Subsection 3.4.2.F. Dimensional Standards 
o Attachment 11: Corrective Action Plan/ Approval 
o Attachment 12:  Appeal 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

0 
- 

B
O

A
 2

0-
13

83
  S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

1 
N

O
V

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.c

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

2 
p

ic
 1

 x
2 

 (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.d

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

3 
p

ic
 2

x2
  (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.e

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

4 
a 

20
07

 U
D

O
  (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.f

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

4 
b

 2
00

7 
U

D
O

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.g

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

5 
si

te
 p

la
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.h

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
em

en
t 

6 
A

sb
u

ilt
 s

u
rv

ey
  (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.i

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

7 
C

O
C

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.j

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

8 
G

IS
 A

er
ia

l 2
01

0 
 (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.k

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

8 
G

IS
 A

er
ia

l 2
01

2 
 (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.l

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

9 
m

ap
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 z

o
n

in
g

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.m

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

10
 U

D
O

 C
h

 3
  (

B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.n

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

11
 C

o
rr

ec
ti

ve
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 a
p

p
ro

va
l  

(B
O

A
 2

0-
05

 J
er

ry
 D

. M
er

ri
tt

 -
 A

p
p

ea
l:

)



3.A.o

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

11
 C

o
rr

ec
ti

ve
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)



3.A.p

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

tt
ac

h
m

en
t 

12
 A

p
p

ea
l A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
B

O
A

 2
0-

05
 J

er
ry

 D
. M

er
ri

tt
 -

 A
p

p
ea

l:
)


	Minutes
	I. Call to Order - 7:00 PM
	Roll Call
	A. Announce Quorum Being Met
	B. Approval of Agenda
	C. Approval of Minutes
	1. BOA Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2020
	Attachment: BOA Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2020


	D. Ask for Disqualifications

	II. Old Business
	III. New Business
	A. BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt - Appeal:
	Printout: BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt - Appeal:
	a. Attachment 0 - BOA 20-1383  Staff Report
	b. Attachment 1 NOV
	c. Attachment 2 pic 1 x2
	d. Attachment 3 pic 2x2
	e. Attachment 4 a 2007 UDO
	f. Attachment 4 b 2007 UDO
	g. Attachment 5 site plan
	h. Attachement 6 Asbuilt survey
	i. Attachment 7 COC
	j. Attachment 8 GIS Aerial 2010
	k. Attachment 8 GIS Aerial 2012
	l. Attachment 9 map showing zoning
	m. Attachment 10 UDO Ch 3
	n. Attachment 11 Corrective Action Plan approval
	o. Attachment 11 Corrective Action Plan
	p. Attachment 12 Appeal Application


	Announcements
	Adjournment

	Appendix
	1.C.1 · BOA Meeting Minutes - October 15, 2020
	3.A · BOA 20-05 Jerry D. Merritt - Appeal:
	3.A.a · Attachment 0 - BOA 20-1383  Staff Report
	3.A.b · Attachment 1 NOV
	3.A.c · Attachment 2 pic 1 x2
	3.A.d · Attachment 3 pic 2x2
	3.A.e · Attachment 4 a 2007 UDO
	3.A.f · Attachment 4 b 2007 UDO
	3.A.g · Attachment 5 site plan
	3.A.h · Attachement 6 Asbuilt survey
	3.A.i · Attachment 7 COC
	3.A.j · Attachment 8 GIS Aerial 2010
	3.A.k · Attachment 8 GIS Aerial 2012
	3.A.l · Attachment 9 map showing zoning
	3.A.m · Attachment 10 UDO Ch 3
	3.A.n · Attachment 11 Corrective Action Plan approval
	3.A.o · Attachment 11 Corrective Action Plan
	3.A.p · Attachment 12 Appeal Application



